
Finance & Personnel Committee  
of the City of Onalaska 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
1 

The Meeting of the Finance & Personnel Committee of the City of Onalaska was called to order 1 
at 7:30 p.m. on Wednesday, April 8, 2015.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced 2 
and a notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken, with the following members present:  Ald. Bob Muth, Ald. Jim Olson, Ald. 5 
Jim Bialecki 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, Human 8 
Resource Specialist Hope Burchell, Land Use and Development Director Brea Grace, Parks and 9 
Recreation Director Dan Wick, Ald. Erik Sjolander, Ald. Harvey Bertrand 10 
 11 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting  12 
 13 
Motion by Ald. Olson, second by Ald. Muth, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting 14 
as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 15 
 16 
On voice vote, motion carried. 17 
 18 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual)  19 
 20 
Ald. Bialecki called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 21 
portion of the meeting. 22 
 23 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 24 
 25 
FINANCE  26 
 27 
Item 4 – Omni Center financials for 2015 28 
 29 
Dan stated the facility “is doing very well” and said that as of February the Omni Center was 30 
approximately $20,000 ahead of where it was at the same time one year ago.  Dan reported that 31 
expenses have decreased and revenue has increased, and he complimented the Omni Center staff 32 
for its work.  Dan said there is an effort “to sell the building more” and also attract new events as 33 
the summer months approach. 34 
 35 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to accept the Omni Center financials. 36 
 37 
On voice vote, motion carried. 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
Reviewed 4/9/15 
 



Finance & Personnel Committee  
of the City of Onalaska 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
2 

Item 5 – City General Fund Financials for 2015 43 
 44 
Fred stated it is too early in 2015 to notice any type of trend. 45 
 46 
Ald. Bialecki said the committee will examine some of the expenditures as the year progresses. 47 
 48 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Muth, to accept the City General Fund Financials. 49 
 50 
On voice vote, motion carried. 51 
 52 
Item 6 – Review and consideration to allow Mayor: 53 
 54 

a. Usage of private vehicle for Mayor at full federal rate 55 
b. Private passenger usage waiver for Mayor while using city vehicle 56 

 57 
Ald. Bialecki said these items have been removed from the agenda. 58 
 59 
Item 7 – Authorization to purchase office chairs (non-budgeted items) using the General 60 
Fund Portion Undesignated Fund Dollars 61 
 62 
Fred said there were departments in the City Hall suite that had requested chairs through the 63 
budget process.  Fred noted that the chairs had been removed from the Executive Budget due to 64 
caps and restrictions, but there was a plan to look into purchasing chairs in 2015 by utilizing 65 
Non-Designated Fund Balance dollars in the Equipment Replacement Fund.  Fred reported there 66 
is a fund balance of $317,886 in the Non-Designated Fund Balance and referred to a memo that 67 
lists a price of $23,158.56 to purchase office chairs for Police/Fire, Parks and Recreation, and 68 
Planning/Engineering/Inspections. 69 
 70 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to authorize the purchase of office chairs (non-71 
budgeted items) from Emmons Business Interiors using the General Fund Portion Undesignated 72 
Fund Dollars in an amount not to exceed $23,158.56. 73 
 74 
On voice vote, motion carried. 75 
 76 
Item 8 – Acceptance of a $6,600 grant award from the Wisconsin Historical Society for the 77 
purpose of completing a historical inventory (non-city match) 78 
 79 
Brea noted that the city has been awarded a $6,600 grant from the Wisconsin Historical Society.  80 
This grant is 100 percent State of Wisconsin funds, and there would be no City of Onalaska 81 
matching dollars required.  Brea said there would be some staff time utilized to assist in 82 
accomplishing the outcome of the grant, which would be to complete a historical inventory of 83 
city properties older than 50 years of age.  These properties would be photographed to document 84 
Reviewed 4/9/15 
 



Finance & Personnel Committee  
of the City of Onalaska 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
3 

their unique characteristics.  Brea said a consultant would be hired to perform this work, noting 85 
there are consultants in the state that specialize in performing historical inventories.  These 86 
consultants are prequalified by the Wisconsin Historical Society.  Brea said staff would put out a 87 
Request for Proposal, and also said she would return to a future Finance and Personnel 88 
Committee meeting to obtain approval for a contract before a consultant is hired.  Brea said the 89 
outcome of a historical inventory is to provide outreach and education to property owners about 90 
their properties.  Brea said the Historical Preservation Commission could elect to put such 91 
properties on a local registry and stated the intent is to educate property owners about a State of 92 
Wisconsin listing.  The property owners on the state listing would receive historic tax credits.  93 
Brea said, “It kind of leads them down the path of potentially [earning] some tax credits that 94 
might help reinvest in some of these older homes.” 95 
 96 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Brea said the $6,600 would cover the cost of hiring a 97 
consultant, noting she had received three price quotes last autumn and stating that staff is “very 98 
comfortable with the price.” 99 
 100 
Mayor Chilsen stated that this grant has no connection to the Onalaska Historical Society. 101 
 102 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Muth, to accept a $6,600 grant award from the 103 
Wisconsin Historical Society for the purpose of completing a historical inventory (non-city 104 
match). 105 
 106 
On voice vote, motion carried. 107 
 108 
PERSONNEL  109 
 110 
Item 1 – Review and consideration of changes to Worker’s Compensation Policy #4.04 111 
 112 
Hope said she had examined the policy and noted it did not sufficiently address accident 113 
investigation in the city’s procedures.  Hope said she believed it was crucial to establish this in a 114 
more formal policy rather in just the accident report.  Hope said CVMIC has some exceptional 115 
sample policies and noted she had gathered a significant amount of information from there.  116 
Hope said the policy outlines the responsibilities of department supervisors and employees; 117 
provides detailed information on how injuries and illnesses need to be reported; outlines the 118 
investigation procedures; and describes how to interview witnesses.  Hope said a significant 119 
portion of the policy involves additional forms.  The policy will allow staff to review unsafe acts 120 
and conditions, and also will provide a quick source of information. 121 
 122 
Hope referred to the Wisconsin Retirement System and noted that there is both an employee 123 
portion and an employer portion.  Hope cited the example of an employee who is not working 124 
due to a temporary partial disability – which means he/she is not receiving a paycheck from the 125 
city, but rather a disability check from an insurance company – and noted one of the 126 
Reviewed 4/9/15 
 



Finance & Personnel Committee  
of the City of Onalaska 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
4 

requirements from the Employee Trust Fund is that the city must pay both the employer and the 127 
employee portion.  Hope said the WRS allows the city to decide whether or not it wishes to 128 
recoup those funds from the employee and noted she had created the following options for the 129 
committee to consider: 130 
 131 

• The City of Onalaska will pay the employee portion while an employee is receiving 132 
temporary disability compensation and the city will not ask for money back from the 133 
employee. 134 

• The City of Onalaska will pay for the first 30 days, but the employee will have to pay 135 
following those 30 days. 136 

• The City of Onalaska will recover the entire amount from the employee. 137 
 138 
Hope noted that this matter had been discussed at department huddle meetings and said concerns 139 
were raised over the possibility that this would be a budgetary issue and impact the budget.  140 
Hope noted that wages and WRS are budgeted for an entire year, which means there is no loss or 141 
increase to the budget with this.  Hope said she believes a majority of the supervisors think the 142 
City of Onalaska should pay the WRS employee portion benefits for any employee who is 143 
injured on the job and out on disability leave.  However, Hope said she will defer to the 144 
committee to make the final decision. 145 
 146 
Ald. Bialecki asked if this would be subject to the negotiating process for some city employees. 147 
 148 
Hope said this would need to be negotiated with the Police Department and Fire Department 149 
contracts, and also said it would apply to the city’s full-time staff.  Hope noted that the city pays 150 
the entire portion as part of the Fire Department contract, and police officers pay the difference 151 
between 5 percent and above for the employee portion. 152 
 153 
Ald. Bialecki asked if any employees have been gone a significant length of time within the last 154 
one to three years. 155 
 156 
Hope said no, noting she believes there was an employee who had been gone less than 30 days in 157 
2014.  Hope said this is what prompted her to adjust the policy.  Hope said the committee may 158 
choose any one of the three options she had presented earlier, noting that while the city must 159 
initially pay the employee portion, it has the ability to recoup those dollars based on what the 160 
Employee Trust Fund says the city is able to do.  Hope referred to a copy of the policy included 161 
in committee members’ packets and read the following:  “The amount recoverable may not be 162 
deducted from the employee’s paycheck at a rate greater than 5 percent of each payment of 163 
earnings.”  Hope noted that this is stipulated in the Employee Trust Fund’s manual.  Hope noted 164 
concerns had been raised over the possibility an employee who apparently suffered a workers’ 165 
compensation injury, but it was later determined that was not the case. Hope said she had 166 
addressed this with the following wording:  “Should the workers compensation administrator 167 

Reviewed 4/9/15 
 



Finance & Personnel Committee  
of the City of Onalaska 
Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
5 

determine the injury is not work related, the employee shall be responsible for reimbursing the 168 
City for WRS contributions paid by the City while the employee was receiving temporary 169 
disability compensation.” 170 
 171 
Ald. Bialecki said he would not oppose the city covering the employee portion because there 172 
have not been significant losses within at least the last three years.  Ald. Bialecki pointed out that 173 
this already is in the budget, but also said it might be something that would have to be removed 174 
should the city experience budget challenges similar to the one it faced in 2009. 175 
 176 
Hope noted she has not yet had the opportunity to receive feedback from City Attorney Sean 177 
O’Flaherty.  However, Hope said Sean’s office has a copy of the policy and will return it to her 178 
yet this week so it is ready to be discussed at the April 14 Common Council meeting. 179 
 180 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Muth, to send to the Common Council without 181 
recommendation review and consideration of changes to Worker’s Compensation Policy #4.04. 182 
 183 
On voice vote, motion carried. 184 
 185 
Item 2 – Quarterly Report on Joint Municipal Court Collections – FIO 186 
 187 
Fred noted that the number of cases not dismissed had decreased by 126 from the first quarter of 188 
2014 to the first quarter of 2015.  Also, the number of cases not dismissed had decreased by 86 189 
from the first quarter of 2013 to the first quarter of 2014. 190 
 191 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to accept the Quarterly Report on Joint 192 
Municipal Court Collections. 193 
 194 
On voice vote, motion carried. 195 
 196 
Adjournment 197 
 198 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Olson, to adjourn at 7:48 p.m. 199 
 200 
On voice vote, motion carried. 201 
 202 
 203 
Recorded by: 204 
 205 
Kirk Bey 206 

Reviewed 4/9/15 
 


